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Chartered Accountants
14th Floor, Central B Wing and North ¢ Wing, Telephone: 91 (22) 6257 1000

Nesco IT Fark 4, Nesco Center, Fax: +81 (22} 6257 1010

\Western Express Highway,
Goregaon {East), Mumbat - 400063, India

Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Members of
Alliance Mall Developers Co Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Alliance Mall Developers Co Private Limited (“the
Company™), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2022, the statement of profit and
loss (including other comprehensive income), the statement of changes in equity and the statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as

“financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesatd financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the
Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2022,
its loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended

on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide

a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)
Alliance Mall Developers Co Private Limited

Other Information

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report but does not
include the financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

fn connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to

report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the financial statements

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in
Section 134(5) of the Act, with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs, profit/loss and other comprehensive income, changes in
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133
of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error..

In preparing the financial statements, management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or 1o cease operations, or has no realistic alternative bt to do so.

Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Aauditors’ Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expecied to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

¥
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)
Alliance Mall Developers Co Private Limited

Auditors’ Responsibility for the Audit of the financial statements (Continued)

Our objectives are 10 obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high lfevel of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of maiterial misstaternent of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as frand may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal controf.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating

effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concem.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and fo communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and

where applicable, related safeguards.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)
Alliance Mall Developers Co Private Limited

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143 (11} of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A”, a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

(A} As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(@)

(b)

(©)

(@

(e)

®

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of
our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive
income), the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with

by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March
2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as
on 31 March 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the

Act; and

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to the
financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”.

(B) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors” Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best

of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

(@)

(b)

()

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2022 on
its financial position in its financial statements — Refer Note 34 to the financial

statements.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts, including derivative contracts, for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, fo the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.




BSR&Co. LLP

Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)

Alliance Mall Developers Co Private Limited
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (Continued)

(d) (i) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
as disclosed in Note 46 to the financial statements, no funds have been
advanced or foaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other
persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary
shall:

» directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) by or on behalf of the

Company or

s provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

{i) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
as disclosed in Note 46 to the financial statements, no funds have been
received by the Company from any persons or entities, including foreign
entities (“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Company shall:

s directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) by or on behalf of the

Funding Party or

= provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behall of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(iliy Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to
believe that the representations under sub-clause {d) (i) and (d) (ii) contain

any material mis-statement.
(&) The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

(C) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors® Report under Section 197(16) of
the Act, we report that:

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of

the records of the Company, the Company has not paid/ provided for managerial

remuneration and the Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under
Section 197 (16) which are required to be commented upon by us.

For BSR& Co.LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No: 101248W/W-100022

NGPau sy allon
M
Mansi Pardiwalla
Mumbai Partner
28 May 2022 Membership No: 108511

UDIN: 2210851 LAJTYLM1 141




BSR &Co. LLP

Alliance Mall Developers Co Private Limited
Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report — 31 March 2022

(Referred to in Paragraph I under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory requirements’ section our
report of even date)

() (a) (AY The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment and Investment
Property.
(B) The Company does not have any intangible assets. Accordingly, paragraph 3(i{}(a)B)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b} According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of
physical verification of its Property, Plant and Equipment including Investment property
by which all property, plant and equipment including investment properties are verified
annually. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No discrepancies were

noticed on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties as
disclosed in the Note 3 and 4 of the financial statements are held in the name of the

Company.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property,
Plant and Equipment or intangible assets or both during the year.

{e) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the
Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

(ii)(a) The Company inventory includes construction work in progress accordingly the
requirements under paragraph 3(ii) of the Order is not applicable for construction work in

progress.

{b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not been sanctioned any
working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees in aggregate from banks and financial
institutions on the basis of security of current assets at any point of time of the year.
Accordingly, clause 3(iiXb) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(iiiy  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not provided any guarantee
or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to
companies, firms, limited Hability partnership or any other parties during the year. The
Company has made investments in companies, in respect of which the requisite
information is as below. The Company has not made any investments in firms, limited
liability partnership or any other parties. Accordingly, sub-clauses (a), (c), {d), (¢} and (f)

are not applicable.

X
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Alliance Mall Developers Co Private Limited

Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report — 31 March 2022
(Continued)

(i)

)

(vi)

(vii)

(viid)

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures conducted by us, in our opinion the investments made during the year are,
prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the Company. The Company has not
provided any guarantees, security or granted any advances in the nature of loans during

the year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us and based on
the audit procedures conducted by us, the Company has not granted any loans, or provided
any guarantees or security to the parties covered under Section 185 and 186 of the Act. In
our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of
investments made, the Company has complied with the provisions of Section 186 of the

Act.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits
from the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has
not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act for the
services provided by it. Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

{(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, in our opinion amounts deducted /
accrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including
Provident fund, Professional tax, Property tax, Cess and other statutory dues have
been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities. According to the
information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, in our opinion amounts deducted / accrued in the
books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and
Services Tax and Income-tax have generally been regularly deposited with the
appropriate authorities, though there have been slight delays in a few cases. As
explained to us, the Company did not have any dues on account of wealth tax,

Custom duty and Employees’ State Insurarce.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of out
examination of the records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of Goods and Services Tax, Provident fund, Professional tax, Property tax,
Income-tax, Cess and other statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2022 for
a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, there are no statutory dues relating to
Goods and Service Tax, Provident Fund, Professional tax, Property tax, Income-
Tax, or Cess or other statutory dues, which have not been deposited with the

appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed
any transactions, previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax
assessments under the Income-tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.
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Annexure A to the Independent Aunditors’ Report — 31 March 2022
(Continued)

(ix)(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment
of loans and borrowing or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful
defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or government authority.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the
Company has not obtained any term loans during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(c) of

the Order is not applicable,

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination
of the balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis

have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

{(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination
of the financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any
funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries,
associates of joint ventures as defined under the Act.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by
us, we report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of
securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies (as defined under

the Act).

(x) (2) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not

applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential
allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during

the year. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(xi)(2) Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the
information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company

has been noticed or reported during the course of the audit.

(b} According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section
(12) of Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed
under Rule 13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central

Government.

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received
by the Company during the year.

(xii)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi
Company. Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

g
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report — 31 March 202%
(Continued)}

(xiii)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
transactions with related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Act,
where applicable, and the details of the related party transactions have been disclosed in
the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv)(a)Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our

opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature
of its business.

(bYWe have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued tilf date for the period

(xv)

under audit.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its
directors and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the

Company.

(xvi)(2)The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of

India Act, 1934, Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicabie.

(b) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of

India Act, 1934, Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made

by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) The Company is not part of any group (as per the provisions of the Core Investment

(xvii)

(xvii)

{xix)

Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016, as amended). Accordingly, the requirements
of clause 3 (xvi) (d) are not applicable.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately preceding
financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the
Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe
that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is
not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they
fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that
this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from
the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

2
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report — 31 March 2023
(Continued)

{xx)  According and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no
unspent amount under sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Act pursuant to any project.

Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

For BSR & Co, LLP
Chartered Accountanis
Firm’s Registration No : 101248W/W-100022

Wa&o@fwaﬂﬂs
s T

Muansi Pardiwalla

Mumbai Pariner
28 May 2022 Membership No: 108511
UDIN: 22108511AJTYLM1141
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Alliance Mall Developers Co Private Limited
Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ Report — 31 March 2022

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to the aforesaid financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the

Act™)

{Referred to in paragraph (A) (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Alliance
Mall Developers Co Private Limited (“the Company”} as of 31 March 2022 in conjunction with
our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as
at 31 March 2022, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controfs Over Financial Reporting issued by

the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note™).

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
£ p

The Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to

as “the Act™).

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements were established and maintained and whether such

controls operated effectively in all material respects.

g
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Alliance Mall Developers Co Private Limited

Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ Report — 31 March 2022
(Continued)

Auditors’ Responsibility (Continued)

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness.
Qur audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial

statements.
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Finanecial Controls with reference to financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No: 101248 W/W-100022

W &Jxana»u.a

Mansi Pardiwalla

Partner

Membership No: 108511
UDIN: 22108511 AJTYLM1 141

Mumbai
28 May 2022




Alliance Mall Developers Co Private Limited

Balance sheet
as at 31 March 2022

{Currency ; Indiar Rupees in Lakhs)

Naote 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Assefs
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 216.74 29261
Investment property 4 36,504.07 32,008.91
Financial assets
Insvestments k) 57,74 7.34
Other financial assets [ 246.03 33772
Deferred fax assets (nef) 7 2,830.19 2,604.58
Non-cursent tax assets {net) & 244,43 623.95
Othier nen current assets 9 442,30 497.80
Total non-current assets 34,891.50 36,373.01
Current assefs
Inventories 10 7,244.50 5,858.06
Financial Assots
Investments 11 .93 -
Trade recefvables 12 817.28 1,047.42
Cash and cash equivalents i3 1,687.90 T720.52
Bank Balance other than (note 13) above i4 1,369,063 69,56
Loans 13 10.00 12.55
Other current assets 16 837.95 684.01
Total current assels 11,976.59 §,302.12
Total assets 46,568.09 44,765.13
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital 17 32683 326.83
Instruments entirsly equity in nature 17.1 11689 116.89
Other Equity 7.2 15,600.88 16.024.14
Total equity 16,044.60 16,467.86
Liabilities
Nox - current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Bosrowings 18 20,493.98 18,868.94
Other financial labilities 9 1,682.45 1,774.48
Provisions 20 13.60 16,00
Other non-current liabilities 21 26,84 57.62
Total non-current Habilities 21,216.87 20,717.04
Current liabilities
Financial liabiities
Borrewings 22 4,393,585 3,896.00
Trade payables
Totat outstanding dues 1o micro enferprise and small enterprise 23 1.92 147
Total cutstanding dues to creditors other than micro enterprise and smail enterprise 23 347.00 428.68
Other financiai liabilities 24 824,58 1,332.51
Other current liabilities 23 2,726.02 1,906,535
Provisions 26 13,55 15,02
Total current Habilities 8.306.62 7.580.23
TFotal equity and lisbilities 46,568,09 44,755.13
Stgrificant acconnting policies 2
3.48

Notes to the financial statements

The accompanying nofes form an integrat part of these Ind AS financial statements,
As per our repart of even date aftached

behaif of the Board of Birectors of

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Ragistration No: 101248 W/W-100022

Mo aUA

Mansi Pardiwalla
Partner
Membership No: 108511

Director Director
DIN 05151360 DI 07155347

Place : Mumbai

Plage : Mumbai
Date : 28 May 2022 Dale : 28 May 2022




Alliance Mall Developers Co Private Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss
for the year ended 31 March 2022

(Currency : Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

Note 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Income
Revenue from operations 27 3,795.90 2,254.24
Other income 28 562,08 147.08
Total income 4,357.98 2,401.32
Expenses
Eraployee benefit expense 29 159.08 131.54
Finance Cost 30 2,109.99 2,171.93
Depreciation expense 3! 1,588.73 1,788.89
Other expenses 32 1,168.38 782.28
Total expenses 5,026.18 4,874.64
(Loss) before tax (668.20) (2,473.32)
Less : Tax expense
- Current tax 8 - -
- Deferred tax (credit) 7 (225.44) (151.55)
Taotal tax expenses (225.44) (151.55)
(Loss) for the year (A) (442.76) (2,321.77)
QOther comprehensive income (OCI)
Items not to be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
0.07) 2.83

- Remeasurement of post employment benefit obligation
- Income tax on above 0.17 0.71)

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (B) 050) 212
Total comprehensive income for the year (A+B) (443.26) {2,319.65)
Earning per equity share 33
{Nominal value of share Rs. 10) : Basic " {13.55) (71.05)
: Diluted (13.55) (71.05)
Significant accounting policies 2
3-48

Notes to the financial statements

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Ind AS financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached

For and on behalf of the Board of Pirectors of

ForBSR& Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants Y.
Firm's Registration No: 101248 W/W-100022 //

f‘d@&d;w PITS

tp———————

»

Mansi Pardiwalla

Partner
Membership No: 108511

iance Mali Developers Co Private Limited

Director
DIN 05151360

Place : Mumbai

Place : Mumbal
Date : 28 May 2022

Date : 28 May 2022



Alliance Mall Developers Co Private Limited

Cash Flow Statement
Jor the year ended 31 March 2022
{Currency : Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

31 March 2622 31 March

A. Cash flows from eperating activities:
(Loss) before tax (668.20) {2,473.32)
Adjustments for:
Amortisation of security deposits (14.63) {50.08)
Reversal of provision for expected credit loss - {26.15)
Unwinding of security deposits 6.18 75.91
Notional corporate guaraniee expense 64.38 54,60
Depreciation expense 1,588.73 1,788.89
Finance costs : 2,039.43 2,042.01
Interest income (27.75) (20.43)
Sundry balance write off .59 R
Sundry balance write back (297.92) {1.97)
Provision for expected credit foss on financial assets 81.47 35.24
Operating profit before working capital changes 2,772.28 1,424.10
Adjustments for changes in working capital:
Decrease / (Increase) in trade receivables 229,55 (240.30)
Decrease in other financial assets 10.22 1.43
(Increase) / decrease in other assets (192.72) 33.58
(Increase) / decrease in loans (1,299.47) 585.92
{Increase) in inventories (1,408.78) (1,213.55)
Increase in trade and cother payables 216.6% 91.76
Increase in other financial liabilities 1,077.52 98.05
Increase in other Habilities 782.51 825.25
(Decrease) / Increase in provisions {4.54) 4.85
Cash generated from operations 2,183.26 1,611.09
Direct texes paid (net of refunds received) ) 379.52 174.64
Net cash generated from operating activities (A) 2,562,78 1,785.73

B, Cash flows from investing activities:

Purchase of property, plant and equipment (0.903 (727
Purchase of investment property {7.12) (2.52)
Purchase of investment property under construction - -
Purchase from investments (net of redemption) (66.33) 77.50
Profit on sale of mutual fund - -
Repayment of loans 2.58 0.45
Interest received 27.75 20.43
Net cash flow generated from/(used in) investing activities (B) {38.05) 88.59
C, Cash flows from financing aciivities:
Proceeds from long-term borrowings 2,069.70 -
Repayment of long-term borrowings {1,662.85) -
Proceeds fron {repayment) short-term (212.45) (257.22)
Proceeds shori-term borrowings {net) . - 112,90
Interest paid {1,751.75) {1,420.54)
Net cash flow (used in) financing activities (C) (1,557.35) (1,564.86)
Net increase in cash and cash egnivalenfs (A+B+C) 967.38 309.46
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 720.52 411,06
1,687.80 720.52

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year




Alliance Mall Developers Co Private Limited

Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended 31 March 2022

{Currency : Indian Rupees in Lakhs)
31 Moarch 2022 31 March
Components of cash and cash equivalents considered only for the purpose of cash flow statement
In bank current accounts 1,687.48 716.24
Cash on hand 0.42 4,28
1.687.99 720.52

The Cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Indien Accounting Standard - 7 (‘Ind AS 77} on Cash
Flow Statement prescribed in Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015, notified under section 133 of the Companies Act,

Reconciliation between the opening and closing balances in the balance sheet for financial liabilities arising from financing activities

Non-cash changes
. Interest Current /
Particulars 31-Mar-21 |Cash flows addition/debt Non - current 31-Mar-22
syndication fees classification
ILong-term borrowings (refer note 18) 18,868.94 |  2,065.70 265.34 {710,000 20,493.98
Short-term borrowin-és {refer note 22) 3,856.00 {212.45) - 710.00 4,393.55
Teotal liabilities from financing activities 22,764.94 1,857.25 265.34 - 24,887.53
Non-cash changes
Particulars Current/ .
31-Mar-20 Cash flows | Fair value changes | Non - current ; 31-Mar-21
classification
Long-term borrowings (refer note 18) 18,998.32 621.47 - (750.85) 18,868.94
Short-term borrowings {refer note 22) 2,377.47 (144.32) - 1,662.85 3,896.00
Other financial liabilities (refer note 24) 912.00 - - {912.00) -
Total liabilities from financing activities 22,287.79 47715 - - 22,764.94

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No: 101248W/W-100022

- NPandiw

e

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Aliiance Mali Developers Co Private Limited

CIN: U70101MH2007PTC173672

Mansi Pardiwalla fpa Hakani
Pariner Director Director
DIN 05151360 DINT7155347

Membership No: 108511

Place : Mumbai
Date : 28 May 2022

Place : Mumbai
Date ; 28 May 2022
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Alliance Mall Developers Co Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements
Jor the year ended 31 March 2022

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

2.1

@

(b)

(c)

(@)

Corporate information

Alliance Mall Developers Co Private Limited (the Company) is a company domiciled in
India and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The Company is
engaged in the business of developing, owning and operating of shopping malls,

commercial and residential premises.

Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance

These financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and other

relevant provisions of the Act and amendments, as applicable.

This is the first set of the Company's financial statements in which Ind AS 116, Lease, has
been applied. Changes to significant accounting policies are described in note 2.2 (H) and
2.2 (P). There is no impact on financials due to change in accounting policy w.e.f Ist April

2019.

These financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 have been reviewed by the
Audit Committee and approved by the Board of Directors at their meetings held on 28 May

2022,
Details of accounting policies are included in Note 2.2 to the financial statements.

Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the
following items:

Ttems Measurement basis

Certain financial assets and Habilities  Fair value (refer note 2.2 (A))
Net defined benefit (asset) / liability ~ Fair value of plan assets less present value of defined obligations

Functional and presentation caurrency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is the Company’s
functional currency. All the financial information have been presented in Indian Rupees
(INR) and all amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest lakhs, unless otherwise stated.

Use of estimates and judgements

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. In
preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of




Alliance Mall Developers Co Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2022

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

2.1

(@)

(e

Basis of preparation (Continued)

Use of estimates and judgements (Continued)

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised prospectively.

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of
resulting in a material adjustment in the year ending 31 March 2022 is included in the

following notes:
Note 7 - recognition of deferred tax assets: availability of future taxable profit against
which tax losses carried forward can be used;

Note 35 - measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumptions;

Notes 20, 26 and 34 - recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies:
key assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources;

- Note 40 - impairment of financial assets;

Note 2.2 (B) and 2.2 (C) - estimation of useful life of property, plant and equipment
and investment properties;

- Note 2.2 (C) — estimation of fair value of investment property; and

Note 2.2 (G) and 41- Evaluation of satisfaction of performance obligation at a point in
time for the purpose of revenue recognition.

Recent Accounting Developments

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”™) notifies new standards or amendments to the
existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from
time to time. Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), vide notification dated 23rd March,
2022, has made the following amendments to Ind AS which are effective 1st April, 2022:

a. Ind AS 109: Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021)

b, Ind AS 103: Reference to Conceptual Framework

¢. Ind AS 37: Onerous Contracts - Costs of Fulfilling a Contract
d. Ind AS 16: Proceeds before intended use




Alliance Mall Developers Co Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2022

{Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

2.1

®

(2

Basis of preparation (Continued)

Measurement of fair values
A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require measurement of
fair values, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs
used in the valuation techniques as follows. .

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted} in active markets for identical assets and Habilities.

Level 2: inputs other than quotes prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

‘When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable
market data as far as possible. If the inputs used to measwre the fair value of an asset or a
liability fall info different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value
measurement is categorised in ifs entirely in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as
the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of
the reporting period during which the change has occurred.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in the
following notes:

- Note 40 — financial instroments and
- Note 4- investment property

Current and non-carrent ciassification

All assets and liabilities are classified into current and non-current.
An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

{a) it is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the
entity’s normal operating cycle;

(b) itisheld primarily for the purpose of being traded;
{c} itisexpected to be realised within twelve months after the balance sheet date; or

(d) it is cash or a cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or
used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the balance sheet date.

All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria;
(a) itis expecied to be settled in, the entity’s normal operating cycle;

(b) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;




Alliance Mall Developers Co Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2022

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(d) The Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability
for at least twelve months after the balance sheet date.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the
Company’s normal operating cycle and other criteria set out above which are in
accordance with the Scheduie I11 fo the Act.
Based on the nature of services and the time between the acquisition of assets for

processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained
its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current - non-current classification of

assets and liabilities.

(h) Going concern

The Company is engaged in the business of missed used development at Coimbatore.
Based on the future business plans and cash flows of the Company, the management
believes that the Company, as at 31 March 2022, will continue to operate as a going
concern for the foreseeable future, realise its assets and discharge its liabilities as they fall
due for payment, in the normal course of business




Alliance Mall Developers Co Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2022

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

2.2

Significant accounting policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods
presented in these financial statements,

Financial instraments

(9

(i)

Recognition and inifial measurement

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised when they are
originated. All other financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised
when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an
item not at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are
directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets
On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at

- amortised cost;
- FVYOCI - debt investment;
- FVOCI - equity investment; or

- FVTPL

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if
and in the period the Company changes its business model for managing financial

assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following
conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets fo
collect contractual cash flows; and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount

outstanding.
A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions
and is not designated as at FVTPL:
the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and
the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.




Alliance Mall Developers Co Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2022

{Cutrency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

2.2  Significant accounting policies (Continued)

A. Finaneial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Classification and subsequent measurement (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the the
Company has elected the irrevocable option to present subsequent changes in the
investment’s fair value in OCI (designates as FVOCI - equity investment). This
election is made on an investment-by-investment basis.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortized cost or FVOCI as
described above are measured at FVTPL, This includes all derivative financial
assets. On initial recognition, the Company irrevocably designate a financial asset
that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortized cost or at FVOCI
as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces on accounting mismatch

that would otherwise arise.
Financial assets: Business model assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which
a financial asset is held at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the
business is managed and information is provided to management. The information
considered includes:

the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those
policies in practice. These include whether management’s strategy focuses on
earning contractual interest income, maintaining a particular interest rate profit,
matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of any related
liabilities or expected cash outflows or realizing cash flows through the sale of

the assets;
- how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company’s
management;

- the risk that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial
assets held within that business model) and how those risks are managed;

- how managers of the business are compensated - e.g. whether compensation is
based on the fair value of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows

collected; and
- the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the
reasons for such sales and expectations about future sales activity.
Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for
derecognition are not considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the
Company’s continuing recognition of the assets.

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is
evaluated on a fair value basis are measured at FVIPL.




Alliance Mall Developers Co Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
Jfor the year ended 31 March 2022

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

2.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

A Financial instruments (Continued)

(%)

Classification and subsequent measurement (Continued)

Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of
principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the
financial asset on initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the
time value of money and for the credit risk associated with the principal amount
outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and
costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and
interest, the Company considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This
includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that could
change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not mect
this condition. In making this assessment, the Company considers:

- contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

- terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate
features; .

- prepayment and extension features; and

terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g.
non-recourse features)

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest
criterion if the prepayment amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding, which may include
reasonable additional compensation for early termination of the contract.
Additionally, for a financial asset acquired at a significant discount or premium to its
contractual par amount, a feature that permits or requires prepayment at an amount
that substantially represents the contractual par amount plus accrued (but unpaid}
contractual interest {(which may also include reasonable additional compensation for
early termination) is treated as consistent with this criterion if the fair value of the

prepayment feature is insignificant at initial recognition.

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets at ¥VTPL- These assets are subsequently measured at fair value.
Net gains and losses, including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in
profit or loss.

Financial assets at amortised cost- These assets are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by
impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is

recognised in profit or loss.




Alliance Mall Developers Co Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements {Continued)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2022

(Cwrrency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

2.2  Significant accounting policies (Continued)

A. Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

(i)

) the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss.

Classification and subsequent measurement (Continued)
Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses (Continued)

Debt investments at FVOCI- These assets are subsequently measured at fair value,
Interest income under the effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and
losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are
recognised in OCL On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCI are
reclassified to profit or loss.

Equity investments at FVOCI - These assets are subsequently measured at fair value.
Dividends are recognised as income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly
represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses
are recognised in OCI and are not reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial Habilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVIPL. A
financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held for trading, or it
is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at
FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest
expense, are recognised in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and
foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss
on derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition

Financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash
flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the
contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Company
neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership
and does not retain control of the financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its

balance sheet, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the
transferred assets, the transferred assets are pot derecognised.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are
discharged or cancelled, or expire.

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and
the cash flows under the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a

new financial Hability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished and
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2.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

A. Financial instruments (Confinued)

(ivi  Offsetting

(v

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in
the balance sheet when, and only when, the Company currenily has a legally
enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net
basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Compound financial instruments

Compound financial instruments issued by the company comprises of convertible
debentures denominated in INR that can be converted to equity shares at the option
of the holder, wherein the number of shares to be issued is fixed and does not vary

with changes in fair value.

The Hability component of a compound Financial instrument is initially recognised
at the fair value which represents the present value of all future cash receipts
discounted using the prevailing market rate of interest for a similar instrument
without conversion option with a similar credit rating. The Equity component is
initially recognised as the difference between fair value of the compound financial
instrument as & whole and the fair value of the liability component. Any directly
attributable transaction costs are allocated to the liability and equity components in

proportion to their initial carrying amounts.

B. Property, piant and equipment

{/

Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes
capitalised borrowing costs, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price,
including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade
discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its
working condition for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and
removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the
cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to bringing
the item to working condition for its intended use, and estimated costs of dismantling
and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful
lives, then they are accounted for as separate itemns {major components) of property,
plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is
recognised in profit or loss.
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2.2 Significant accounting policies (Confinued)

B. Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

(i)

(i)

()

Subsequent expenditure

Subseguent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic
benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company.

Depreciation

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment of the company has been provided as
per written down value method as per the estimated useful lives of the respective
item of Property, Plant and Equipment indicated in Part ‘C* of Schedule II of the Act
or based on management estimates using technical evaluation..

The details are set out as below:

Asset category Useful life estimated by Useful life as per
the management Schedule I of the Act

Paintings 10 years NA

Vehicles 8 years 8 years

Computers 3 years 3 years

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial
year-end and adjusted if appropriate. Based on technical evaluation and consequent
advice, the management believes that its estimates of useful lives as given above
best represent the period over which management expects fo use these assets.

Capital work-in progress and capital advances
Capital work-in progress comprises of the cost of property, plant and equipment that
are not yet ready for their intended use as af the balance sheet date. Advances given
towards acquisition of propetty, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance
sheet date are disclosed as ‘Other non-current assets’. :

C Investment Property

@

Recognition and measurement

Investment properties are held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation, or both, but
not for sale in the ordinary course of business, use in the production or supply of
goods or services or for administrative purposes. Investment properties are measured
initially at their cost of acquisition. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing
cost if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the
asset to its working condition for the intended use. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment property is measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and

accumulated impairment losses, if any.
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2.2

C

D.

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Investment Property (Continued)

(it} Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a
separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Company. All other repair and maintenance
costs are recognized in statement of profit and loss as incurred. Any gain or loss on
disposal of investment property calculated as the difference between the net
proceeds from disposal and the carrying amount of the item is recognized in
Statement of Profit and Loss.
Though the Company measures investment property using cost-based measurement,
the fair value of investment property is disclosed in the note no 4 of the Ind AS
financial statements.
(iii) Depreciation
Depreciation on Investment Property has been provided as per writlen down value
method as per the useful lives indicated in Part ‘C’ of Schedule IT of the Act or based
on management estimates using technical evaluation.
The details are set out as below:
Asset category - Useful life estimated  Useful life as pé.:;”Sc.hedule 1
by the management . of the Act
Plant and equipment 15 years 15 years
Building 60 years 60 years
Furniture 10 years 10 years
Guest house building and Amenities 10 years 60 years
o Over the period of
Buildings (Tenant Capex) lease term 60 years
Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial
year-end and adjusted if appropriate. Based on technical evaluation and consequent
advice, the management believes that its estimates of useful lives as given above best
represent the period over which management expects to use these assets.
Impairment
(i)  Impairment of financial instruments

The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on:
- financial assets measured at amortized cost; and

- financial assets measured at FVOCI- debt investments.
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2.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

D. Impairment (Continued)

&

Impairment of financial instruments (Continued)

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at
amortized cost and debt securities at FVOCI are credit impaired. A financial asset is
‘credit impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the

estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit
fosses, except for the following, which are measured as 12 month expected credit
losses:

debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date;
and .

other debt securities and bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of
default occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument) has not

increased significantly since initial recognition.

Trade and other receivables

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track
changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on
lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition. Trade
receivables are tested for impairment on a specific basis after considering the
sanctioned credit limits, security like letters of credit, security deposit collected, ete.
and expectations about future cash flows.

Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument.

12-month expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit losses that result
from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date (or a
shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less than 12 months).

In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses
is the maximum contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit
risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the
Company considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and
available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative
information and analysis, based on the Company’s historical experience and
informed credit assessment and including forward looking information.

Measurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses, Credit
losses are measured as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e, the difference
between the cash flows due to the Company in accordance with the contract and the
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2.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

D. Impairment (Continued)

)

(&)

Impairment of financial instruments (Continued)
Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from
the gross carrying amount of the assets,

For debt securities at FVOCI, the loss allowance is charged to profit or loss and is
recognised in OCI,

Write off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in
full) to the extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the
case when the Company determines that the debtor does not have assets or sources
of income that could generated sufficient cash flows to be subject to enforcement
activities in order to comply with the Company’s procedures for recovery of

amonnts due.

Impairment of non-financial assefs

The Company’s non-financial assets, other than deferred tax assets, are reviewed at
each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If
any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment.

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are
grouped together into cash generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the
smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of

the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.

Goodwill arising from a business combination is allocated to CGUs or groups of
CGUs that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value
in use and its fair value less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated
future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific

to the CGU (or the asset).

The Company’s corporate assets (e.g. central office building for providing support to
various CGUs) do not generate independent cash inflows. To determine impairment
of a corporate asset, recoverable amount is determined for the CGUs to which the

corporate asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds
its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the statement
of profit and loss. Impairment loss recognised in respect of a CGU is allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to

reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets of the CGU (or group of CGUs)on a

pro _rata basis,
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2.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

D. Impairment (Continued)

()

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not subsequently reversed. In respect of
other assets for which impairment loss has been recognised in prior periods, the
Company reviews at each reporting date whether there is any indication that the loss
has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is
made only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no

impairment loss had been recognised.

E, Employee benefits

it

(i)

(i)

Shore-term employee benefils

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and
are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the
amount expected to be paid, if the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee,
and the amount of obligation can be estimated reliably.

Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity
pays fixed contribution into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive

obligation to pay further amounts.

The Company makes specified monthly contributions towards Government
administered provident fund scheme. Obligations for contributions to defined
contribution plans are recognised as an employee benefit expense in profit or loss in
the periods during which the related services are rendered by employees.

Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a
reduction in future payments is available.

Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined
contribution plan. The Company’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans
is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that
employees have earned in the current and prior periods, discounting that amount and

deducting the fair value of any plan assets,

The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed annuaily by a qualified
actuary using the projected unit credit method. When the calculation results in a
potential asset for the Company, the recognised asset is limited to the present value
of economic benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or
reductions in future contributions to the plan (‘the asset ceiling’). In order to
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E. Employee benefits (Continued)

(iii) Defined benefit plans (Continued)

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liahility, which comprise actuarial gains
and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset
ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognised in OCI. The Company determines
the net interest expense (income) on the net defined benefit liability (asset) for the
period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation
at the beginning of the annual period to the then-net defined benefit liability (asset),
taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability (asset) during the
period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and
other expenses related to defined benefit plan are recognised in profit or loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting
change in benefit that relates to past service (‘past service cost® or ‘past service
gain®) or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
The Company recognises gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan

when the settlement occurs,

(iv)  Other long-term employee benefits

The Company net obligation in respect of long-term employee benefits other than
post-employment benefits is the amount of future benefit that employees have
carned in return for their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is
discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value of any related assets is
deducted. The obligation is measured on the basis of an annual independent actuarial
valuation using the projected unit credit method. Remeasurement gains or losses are
recognises in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

F. Provisions and contingent liabilities

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or
constructive obligation that can be estirpated reliably, and it is probable that an outflows of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows (representing the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date) at a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost.
Expected future operating losses are not provided for.

Contingent Habilities are disclosed in the notes. Contingent liabilities are disclosed for,
Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within
the control of the Company or

- Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount

of the obligation cannot be made.
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2.2

E.

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Provisions and contingent labilities (Continued)

Contingent assets are not recognised in the standalone financial statements. However, the
same are disclosed in the standalone financial statements where an inflow of economic

benefit is probable.

Revenue recognition

Ind AS 115 has been notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) on March 28, 2018
and is effective from accounting period beginning on or after April 01, 2018.

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured.

)

Revenue from real estate projects

The Company has applied modified retrospective approach in adopting the new
standard (for all coniracts other than completed contracts) and accordingly
recognised revenue in accordance with Ind AS 115 as compared fo earlier
Percentage of Completion method as per the Guidance Note on Accounting for Real
Estate Transactions (for entities to whom Ind AS is applicable)

These financial statements is prepared in accordance with Ind AS 115, an
explanation of how the transition to Ind AS 115 has affected the previously reported
financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company is provided

in Note 43.

The Company derives revenues primarily from sale of properties comprising of both
commercial and residential units.

The Company recognises revenue when it determines the satisfaction of performance
obligations at a point in time. Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of
promised products to customer in an amount that reflects the consideration which the
Company expects to receive in exchange for those products.

In arrangements for sale of units the Company has applied the guidance in Ind AS
115, Revenue from contract with customer, by applying the revenue recognition
criteria for each distinct performance obligation. The arrangements with customers
generally meet the criteria for considering sale of units as distinct performance
obligations. For allocating the transaction price, the Company has measured the
revenue in respect of each performance obligation of a contract at its relative
standalone selling price. The price that is regularly charged for an item when sold
separately is the best evidence of its standalone selling price. The transaction price is
also adjusted for the effects of the time value of money if the contract includes a
significant financing component. Any consideration payable to the customer is
adjusted to the transaction price, unless it is a payment for a distinct product or

service from the customer.

For sale of units, the Company recognises revenue when its performance obligations
are satisfied and customer obtains control of the asset.
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G.

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

@)

(i)

(i)

()

)

Revenue from real estate projects (Continued)

Contract assets are recognised when there is excess of revenue earned over billings
on contracts. Contract assets are classified as unbilled receivables (only act of
invoicing is pending) when there is unconditional right to receive cash, and only
passage of time is required, as per contractual terms,

Contract liabilities are recognised when there is billing in excess of revenue and
advance received from customers.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognized in the statement of profit and loss on the date the
entity's right to receive the payments is established.

License fees and rental income

License and rental income is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on
straight line basis over the lease term. Rental income earned from letting of space at
the properties is recognised in the period in which the performance obligation is

satisfied.

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration,
adjusted for volume discounts, performance bonuses, price concessions and
incentives, if any, as specified in the contract with the customer.

Service charges

Service charges include common area maintenance and HVAC charges in respect of
which revenue is recognised in the period in which the services are being rendered.

Other operating revenie

Other operating revenue includes space on hire, kiosk income and rental for data and
voice in respect of which revenue is recognised in the period in which the services
are being rendered.

All revenue is stated exclusive of goods and service tax.
Use of significant judgements in revenue recognition

e Judgement is also required to determine the transaction price for the contract.
The transaction price could be either a fixed amount of customer consideration
or variable consideration with elements such as volume discounts, price
concessions and incentives. The transaction price is also adjusted for the effects
of the time value of money if the contract includes a significant financing
component. Any consideration payable to the customer is adjusted to the
transaction price, unless it is a payment for a distinct product or service from the

customer. =
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G. Revenue recognition (Continued)

(v)  Other operating revenue (Continued)

Use of significant judgements in revenue recognition (Continued)

The estimated amount of variable consideration is adjusted in the transaction
price only to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur and is reassessed at the
end of each reporting period. The Company allocates the elements of variable
considerations to all the performance obligations of the contract unless there is
observable evidence that they pertain to one or more distinct performance

obligations.

H Leases

(i}  Policy applicable before April 61, 2019

Finance Lease - Agreements are classified as finance leases, if substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the leased asset is transferred to the

lessee.

Operating Lease - Agreements which are not classified as finance leases are
considered as operating lease.Operating lease payments/income are recognised as an
expense/income in the statement of profit and loss on 2 straight-line basis over the
lease term unless there is another systematic basis which is more representative

(5)  Policy applicable after April 01, 2019
At the inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a confract is or
contains, a lease. A contract is or contains a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange of
consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an
asset the Company assesses whether:

- The contract involves the use of an identified asset — this may be specified
explicitly or implicitly, and should be physically distinct or represent
substantially all of the capability of a physical distinct asset. If the supplier has a
substantive substitution right, then the asset is not identified

- The Company has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits
from use of the asset throughout the period of use; and
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2.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

H. Leases (Continued)

(i)  Policy applicable after April 01, 2019 (Continued)
As a Lessee

Right of use Asset

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease
commencement date. At the commencement date, a lessee shall measure the right-
of-use asset at cost which comprises initial measurement of the lease liability, any
lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less any lease incentives
received, any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee; and an estimate of costs to be
incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying asset, restoring
the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying asset to the condition
required by the terms and conditions of the lease.

Lease Liability

At the commencement date, a lessee shall measure the lease liability at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date. The lease payments shall
be discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily
determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the lessee shall use the lessee’s

incremental borrowing rate.

L Recognition of interest income or expense

Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest method.

The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument to:

- the gross carrying amount of the financial asset; ot

- the amortised cost of the financial liability.

In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the
gross carrying amount of the asset (when the asset that have become credit-impaired) or to
the amortised cost of the Hability. However, for financial assets that have become credit-
impaired subsequent to initial recognition, interest income is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. If the asset is no longer
credit-impaired, then the calculation of interest income reverts to the gross basis.

J. Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to
the extent that it relates to a business combination or to an item recognised directly in

equity or in other comprehensive income.
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2.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

J Income tax (Continued)

U]

(i)

Current fax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income
or loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of
previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax
amount expected t0 be paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if any,
related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or

substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally
enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the
asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for the financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is also recognised in
respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits. Deferred tax is not recognised
for:

temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in
a transaction that is not a business combination and that affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction;

temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries, associates and
joint arrangements to the extent that the Company is able to control the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that they will not

reverse in the foreseeable future; and
- taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax
losses is strong evidence that future taxable profit may not be available. Therefore,
in case of a history of recent losses, the Company recognises a deferred tax asset
only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is
convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available against
which such deferred tax asset can be realised. Deferred tax assets — unrecognised or
recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised / reduced to the
extent that it is probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been

enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow

from the manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or

settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
i
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ya Income tax (Continued)

(i) Deferred tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax Habilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the
same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax assets and liabilities
will be realised simultaneously.

Minimum Alternate Tax (‘MAT"} credit entitlement is generally recognised as a
deferred tax asset if it is probable (more likely than not) that MAT credit can be used
in future years to reduce the regular tax liability.

Note on Section 115BAA

A new section 115BAA was inserted in the Income Tax Act. 1961, by The
Government of India on 20 September 2019 vide the Taxation Laws (Amendment)
Otdinance 2019 which provides an option to companies for paying income tfax at
reduced rates in accordance with the provisions/conditions defined in the said
section. The Company has decided to exercise the said option.

K Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs (including exchange differences relating to
foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to
interest costs) incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs
directly attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset which necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalised as part of the
cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in

which they are incurred.

L Foreign exchange translation and accounting of foreign exchange fransaction

(i}  Initial Recognition
Foreign currency transactions are initially recorded in the reporting currency, by
applying to the foreign currency amount the exchange rate between the reporting
currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction., However, for
practical reasons, the Company uses a monthly average rate if the average rate
approximates the actual rate at the date of the transactions.

(ii) Conversion
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are reported using
the closing rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary ifems which are carried in terms
of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange
rate at the date of the transaction.




Alliance Mall Developers Co Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2022

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

2.2

L

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Foreign exchange translation and accounting of foreign exchange ftransaction
(Continued)

(iii} Treatment of Exchange Difference
Exchange differences arising on settlement/ restatement of short-term foreign
cutrency monetary assets and liabilities of the Company are recognized as income or
expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Earnings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary
shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss aftributable to ordinary
shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the period, adjusted for own shares held. Diluted EPS is determined by
adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding, adjusted for own shares held, for the effects of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares, except where the results would be anti-dilutive.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent comprise of cash on hand and at banks, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

Inventories

Direct expenses like cost of land, site labour cost, material used for project construction,
project management consultancy and general expenses incurred specifically for the
residential project like insurance, design and technical assistance, borrowing costs and
construction overheads are taken as the cost of project work-in-progress.

These inventories are valued at lower of cost or net realisable value; cost is determined on
the weighted average method. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs

necessary to make the sale.
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Alliance Mall Developers Co Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2022

(Currency : Indian Rupees in Lakhs)
Note 4 ; Investment property

A. Reconciliation of carrying amount

Particulars Freehold P!a'nt and Building * Total
tand * equipment

Gross Block

Balance as at I April 2020 7,808.62 4,314.19 26,176.00 38,298.81
Additions M 0.95 1.57 2.52
Disposals - - - -
Balance as at 31 March 2021 7,808.62 4,315.14 26,177.57 ' 38,301.33
Additions - 1.7¢ 542 AV
Disposals - - - -
Ealance as 2t 31 March 2022 7,808.62 4,316.84 26,182.99 3%,308.45
Accamulated amortisation

Balance as at 1 April 2020 - 1,802.37 2,807.46 4,609.83
Depreciation for the year 47748 £,205.11 1,682.59
Balance as at 31 March 2021 - 2,279.85 | 4,012.57 6,292.42
Depreciation for the year 374.04 1,137.92 1,511.96
Baiance as at 31 March 2022 “ 2,653.89 5,150.49 7,804.38
Net Block

At 31 March 2021 7.808.62 2,035.2¢ 22,165.00 32,008.91
At 31 March 2622 7,808.62 1,662.95 21,032.50 30,504.07
Fair Value

At 3] March 2021 53,502,.91
At 31 March 2022 49,407.81
Notes:
* Assets are mortgaged/hypothecated against the foans taken from Bank and financial institution {refer note 18)




B, Measurement of fair values

i, Fair value hierarchy

The fair value of investment property has been determined by external, independent property valuer, having appropriate recognised
professional qualifications and recent experience in the location and category of the property being valued.
The fair value measurement for the investment property has been categorised as a Level 3 fair value based on the inputs o the valuation

technique used

if. Valuation technique

'The companies investment properties consist of Retail Mail and Land at Coimbatore. Description of valuation techniques used and key inputs
to valuation on investment properties are as follows:

! i Significant Inter-relationship
Type Valuation technique unobservable between significant
' 1), Discount Rate; o o
Tnvestment property DCF method (refer below} 2). Market capitalisation 1575 /Bgt;’fo.SO %,
rate e

The Company follows disconnted cash flow (DCF) method. The DCF method isa financia} modelling technique based on explicit assumptions
regarding the prospective income arising out of the development to be carried out oa the subject land parcel. In case of a valuation of a large
fand parcel fike the subject property, where the development potential is realised over 2 period of time (i.e. time vatue of money comes into the
picture) and also where there are no or few immediate similar properties (i.e. comparable) available for comparison, the DCF method

considering relevant potential developments of the project is used.

€, Amount recognised in profit and toss for investment properties

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Renta} income 3,795.90 2.254.24
Less: direct operating expenses from property that generated rental income 548.88 332.98
Less; Direct Operating expenses from property that did not generate rental income - -
Profit from investment propertics before depreciation 3,247.02 1,921.24
Depreciation 1,532.83 1,712.23
Finance Cost 2,109.99 2,171.93
Profit from investment properties (395.80) (1,962.92)

D. The Company has no restriction on the realisability of its investment property except where it is mortgaged/ypothecated to bank/FI (refer
note 18} and no contractual obligations to purchase, construct or develop investment properties or for repairs, maintenance and enhancerments.
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Alliance Mall Developers Co Private Limited

Notes te the financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2022

{Currency : Indian Rupees in Lakhs)
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Note 6 : Other financial assets
(Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated)

Mobilisation advances
Considered good 15,30 1530
Considered doubiful 1,002.64 1,002.64
Loss allowance
1.ess : Provision for expected credit loss {1,002.64) (1,602.643
15.3¢ 15.30
Security deposit 230.73 32242
246,03 337,72

'T'otal other nor current financial assets

Note 7 : Deferved tax assets (net)

Tax gffect of items constituting deferred tax assets:

Indexation of freehold land 2,097.92 1,601.85

Loss on remeasuring investments at FVOCIT 148.26 14826

Provision for expected credit loss on financial assets 70145 680.95
9.90 12.03

Discounting of security deposits received to present value and corresponding impact on finance cost

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax (liabilities):
Equity component on fair value of corporate guarantee given by parent {127.34) (138.51)

2,830.19 2,604.58

Total Deferred tax assets {net)




Alliance Mall Developers Co Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2022

(Cusrency : Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

Nofe 8 : Nen-curreat fax assets (et}

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Curvent tax expense (A)
Carrent year - .
Deferred tax expense {B)
Originatior: and reversal of temporary differences {225.44) {151.53)
Tax expense recognised in the income stat t (A+B) {223.44) 153.55)
A new section 115BAA was itserted in the Income Tax Act. 1951, by The Goversment of Indiz on 20 September 2019 vide the Taxation Laws {Amendment)
Ordinasioe 2019 which provides an option to companies for paying income tax at reduced rates in accordance with the provisions/conditions defined in the said
section. The Company has decided to exercise said option in preceding fisancial year

Amounts recognised In other comprekensive intome
31 March 2023 31 March 2021
Partieudars Before tax ‘Fax (expense) Net of tax Before tax Tax (experse) benefit  Net of tax
[ benefit
Ttems that will not be rectassified to profif or loss
Remeasurement of the defined benefit plans {0.67) 017 {0.50) 283 {Q.71) 212
105563 on remeasuring investments at FYOCI - - - - - -
(0.67) 0.17 {056} 28 . ©7) 212

{c} Reconcilintion of effective tax rate
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
(Loss) before tax (668.20)  (2,473.32)
‘Tax using the Company’s domestic tax rete {Current year 23.17% and Previous Year 25.17%) (168,17} (622.49)
Tax effect of
Effect of indexation benefit on land {196.06) (147.05)
Equity component of corporate guarantee by PIPL {1117} £1.58
(ither adjustments 3843 36.24
Effect of current year / broughi forward losses for which no deferred tax &s recognised 11153 570.16
'Tax expense as per Statement of Profit & Logs (225.44) {351.56)f
Effective tax rate 33.74% 5.13%,
Non-current tax assets {net}

33 March 2022 31 Mexch
Advance tax including tax deducted at source (net of provision for tax Rs 44.39 lakhs (31 Merch 2021 Rs 44.39
Takhs) 244,43 673,95
Total non-current tax assets (nef) 244,43 623.95




Alliance Mall Developers Co Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

as at 31 March 2022

(Currency : Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

(d) Movement in deferred tax balances

Balance st 31 March 2022
Net bak at  Recognised in ised in Net Deferred  Delerred tax
1 April 3021 the statement of a1 tax assef Habilities
profit and loss
Property, Plant and Equipment - - - - - -
Investment Properly 1,901.85 {196.07) - 2,897.92 2,097.92 E
Investments 148.26 - - 14826 - 148.26 -
[ Financiat 455658 (138.51) {1.4h - {127.34) - 127.34;
Other assets 680.95 (20,50} - 701.45 701.45 -
Financial and other liabilities 12,03 230 (¢.17) 9.90 9.90 -
Tax #ssets {lizbilifes) before set-off 2,604.58 @254d) ©17) 783019 2,957.53 12734
Set-off of deferred tax liabilites (27.34)
Net deferred tax assets/ (iabilities) 2,430,1%
Balance at 31 March 2021
Net bal at  Recognised in gnised in Net Deferred Deferred tax
L Aprit 2020  the statement of OCI 1ax asset linbilities|
profit and loss
Property, Plant and Equipment - - - - - E
Investmenz Propery 1,734.80 (147.05) - 1,901.85 £,901.85 »
Investnents 148.26 - - 148.26 148,26 .
Financi! ssseis {126.9%) 1158 - (138.51) - 138.51
Other assels 67263 (8.87) - 680.95 680.95 E
Financial and cther labilities 5.53 (1.21) 0.71 12.03 12.03 E
Tax assets (liabilities) before set-off 2,453.74 {151.55) o7 2,604.58 2,743,09 138.51
Set-off of deferred tax Habilities (138.51)
Net deferred tax assets? Jiabilities) 2,604.38
(¢) Unrecognised deferved tax assets
Deferred tax have sot been recognised in respect of the following items :
Particulars Expiry 31-Mar-22 3t-Mar-21{
Unabsorbed depreciation Never Expire 8,501.33 7,448.43
Unrecopaised tax losses sarried forward AY 2024-25 TI2.16 7216
AY 2026-27 1,046,957 1,046.97
AY 2029-30 485,23 476.53
Unrecognised tax losses carried forward 224437 2,235.66
Tax effect of unsecognised tax Josses carried forward 2,704.48 2,437 29
{f) On 30th March 2019, MCA has issued amendment regarding the income tax Uncertainty over Income Tax Tretments. As per the Company”s assessment, there are no
jal income tax inties over income tax treatments during the curtent financiel year,




Aliance Mall Developers Co Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2022

(Carrency : Indian Rupees in Lakhs)
31 March 2022 3} March 2021

Note 9 : Other non current assets
(Lnsecured, considered good)

To related parties

Deferred guazantes expense on corporate guarantee given by holding company (Prozone Intu Properties
- 451.95 496,33
Limited)
To parties other than related parties
GST input 40.35 1.57
Total ether non current assets 492.30 497.90
Note 10 ; Inventories
({valued at cost or net realisable value, whichever is lower}
Residential profect
Opening work in progress 5,858.06 4,644.51
Additions during the year:
Construction cost 486,74 13273
Personnet cost 85.96 79.08
Professional foes 19150 16.78
Other expenses 84,88 467.04
Rates and taxes 627 0.74
Finance cost 36689 256.63
Addition on account of significant Finance component 164,20 260,55
7,244.50 5.858,06

Total inventories
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Alliance Mall Developers Co Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2022

(Curreney : Indian Rupees in Lakhs)
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Note 12 : Trade receivables
(Unsecured, considered goad)

Trade receivables
Trade receivables considered good- Unsecured 933,99 1,082.66
(116.71) (35.24)

i.ess : Provision for expected credit loss

817.28 104742

TFotal trade receivables

Disclosure of trade receivable apeing

Outstending for the following periods from due date of payments

FY 2021-2022 Less than 6 6 months « { More than 3
1-Z years] 2-3 years Total

monthsg 1 year| YLUaLs
712,00 34.58 12.98 57.72 - 817.28

{i} Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good

{ii) Undisputed Trade receivables - which have 7187
Isignificant increase in credit risk 4179 071 1.02 . 133 1671

(i#f) Undisputed Trade receivables - credit impaired -

(1) Disputed Trade receivables - considered good - “ - - - -
{ii) Disputed Trade receivables - which have } } i} _ )
significant increase in credit risk )
(iii) Disputed Trade receivables - credit impaired - - - - - -
) Ouistanding for the following periods from due date of payments
Y 2028- -
¥ 0-2021 Tess than 6] 6 months 12years) 2.3 years More than 3 Total
months 1 year years,
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good 641,96 1430} 33510 56.59 - 1,047.94
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - which have 405 020 2393 6.00 0.58 3485
significant increase in credit risk
(iil) Undisputed Trade receivables - credit impaired - - - - - -
(i) Disputed Trade receivables - considered good - - - - - .
(it) Disputed Trade receivables - which have ) . B . .
significant increase in credit risk )
(iii} Digputed Trade recetvables - credit itnpaired - - - - - -
Note 13 : Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks:

- In current accounts 1,687.48 716.24
Cash on hand 0.42 428
Total cash and cash equivalents 1,687.90 720,52
Note 14 : Bank Balance other than (note 13) above
Bank deposits {with eriginal maturity of less than 12 months) (refer note below)* 1,369.03 69.56

1,369.03 69.56

Fotal cash and cash equivalents

* Restrictions on fixed deposits
Fixed deposit of Rs 1143.56 lakhs has been offered as a security against lease rental diseounting loan taken from Bank which is equivalent to

3 months instzlments plus ideal amount which is also kept with bank in form of Fixed Deposit, The said loan i taken in the month
December 2017 which is for period of 12 years. The fixed deposit is required to be maintain throughout tenuse of said loan, Further there is

Fixed Deposit of Rs 10 lakhs which is against bank guaranies given by the company to Pollution control board.

Note 15 : Loans
(Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated)

Loan given to employees

Total Loans




Alliance Mall Developers Co Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

as at 31 March 2022
(Currency : Indian Rupees in Lakhs)
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Loans and Advance to specified person
T B Amounnt of loan or advance in the | Percentage to the total Loans and Advances
Ype ol Borrower nature of loan outstanding in the nature of loans
Promotor Ni Nil
Directors Nit Nii
KMPs o Nit Nil
Rejated Parties Nil Nil

Note 16 : Other current assets
(Unsecured, considered good)

Yo related parties

Current pertion of deferred guarantee expense on corporate guarantee given by holding company 54.00 54.00

(Prozene Intu Properties Limited) . ’

To parties other than refated parties

Prepaid expanses 102.45 66.85

Advances to craditors 505.81 262.97

Unbilled revenue 175.63 224.86

Other advances 0,06 24.20
- 5113

Rank deposits (due to mature after 12 months of the reporting date)

837.95 684.01

Totel other current assets




Alliance Mall Developers Co Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
asat 3] March 2022

(Cumency : Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

Note 17 : Equity share capital

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Authorised
33.00 fakhs (31 March 2021; 33.00 lakhs} equity 330,00 330.00

shares of Rs 10 each

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
32.68 takhs (31 March 2021: 32.68 lakhs) equity 326.83 126.83

shares of Rs 10 each, fully paid up

1} Reconciliation of the shares ouistanding af the beginning and at the end of the reportisg year

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

No. in lakhs Total No. in lakhs Total
Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid ap
At the beginning of the year 32.68 326.83 32.68 326.83
Issued during the year - - - -
Qutstanding at the end of the year 32.68 326.83 32.68 326.83

b) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled

to one vole per share,

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holder of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the
Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares

held by the shareholders.

¢) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to 1% Non-Cumulative, Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares (NCCE

During the year ended 31 March 2011, the Compeny has issued 6.8% lakhs 1% Non-Cumulative, Compulsory Convertible
Preference Shares (NCCPS) of Rs. 10/- each fully paid, at 4 premium of Rs. 802.77 per share to Hagwood Commercial
Developers Private Limited, a fellow subsidiary. Each holder of the NCCPS is entitted to onte vote per share only on resofution
placed before the Company, whick directly affect the right attached to NCCPS. 'The NCCPS are Convertible, at par, at any
time within a period of 10 years from the date of aliotment. The same are now extended for further period of 10 years. If
NCCPS holder does not exercise conversion option, NCCPS are compulsorily convertible into equity share at the end of this

extended period of 10th years.




Alliance Mall Developers Co Private Limited

Notes to the financisl statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2022

(Currency : Indian Rupess in Lalkhs)

d) Shares held by hoiding company

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
. Number of} Number o
Names of equity shareholders equity shares; % of holding equity share:] % of holding
held in lakhs held in lakhs|
Prozone Intu Properties Limifed, Holding
Company
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fuily paid up 20.10 61.50% 20.10 61.50%

¢} Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
No. in lakhs % holding No. in lakhs % holding

Fquity Shares of Rs. 18/- each fully paid up
Prozone Intu Properties Limited, Holding Company 20.10 6L50% 20.10 61.50%
Triangle Rezl Estate India Holdings Limited 1t.44 35.00% 11.44 35.00%

{f) Promoters' shareholdings during the year

Shares held by promotors at the end of the year % Change

during the year

0,
Promoter's Name No. of shares % of Total
shares

(1) Prozone Int: Properties Limited, Holding Company 2010000 G61.50% Nil




Alliance Mall Developers Co Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2022

{Currency : indian Rupees in Lakhs}

Note 17.1 : Instruments entirely equity in nature
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Particalars
Authorised Capital
7.00 Lakhs (31 March 2021: 7.00 Lakhs) 1% Noa-
Cumulative, Compulsory Convertible Preference 70.80 76,00
Shares of Rs.10 each
70,80 70.00

Issued, subscribed and folly paid up
6.89 Lakhs (31 March 2621: 6.89 Lakhs) 1% Noa-
Cumutative, Compulsory Convertible Preference 68.90 63,90
Shares 0f Rs.10 each
4.80 Lakhs {31 March 2021: 4.80 Lakhs) 0.001%
Unsecured Compulsorily Convertible Debenture 47.99 47.99
(UCCD) of Rs.10 each -

116.89 116.89

) Reconciliation of the Shares / Debentares outstandiog t the beginning and at the end of the reportiag year
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
No. in lakhs Rs in lakhs No. in takhs Rs in lakhs
1% Non-Cumulative, Compuisery Convertible
Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- each faly paid up
At the beginning of the year 6.89 68.90 6.89 68.90
Issued during the year - - . -
Qutstanding at the end of the year 6.89 68,90 6.89 68.50
Particutars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
No, in lakhs Rs in lakhs No. in lakhs Rs in fakhs

0.601% Unsecured Compulsory Convertible '
Debenture of Rs 10/- each fully paid up
At the beginning of the year 4.80 47.99 4,30 47.99
Issued during the year - - -
Qutstanding at the end of the year 4.80 47,99 4.80 47.99

b) Terms / rights attached 1% Non-Cumulative, Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares (NCCPS)

During the vear ended 31 March 2011, the Company has issued 6.89 lakhs 1% Non-Cumulative, Compulsory Convertible Preference
Shares (NCCPS) of Rs. 10/~ each fully paid, at a premium of Rs, 802.77 per share to Hagwood Commercial Developers Private Limited,
a fellow subsidiary. Each holder of the NCCPS s entitled to one vote per share only on resolution placed before the Company, which
directly affect the right atiached to NCCPS. The NCCPS are Convertible, at par, at any time within a period of 10 years from the date of
allotment. The same are now extended for further period of 10 years. If NCCPS holder does not exercise conversion option, NCCPS are

compuisorily convertible into equity share at the end of this extended period of 10th years.

©) Terms / rights attached 6.001% Unsecured Compulsorily Convertibie Debenture (UCCD)

In Financial vear 2017 and 2018 respectively, company has issued 401,325 debentures and 78,567 debentures, 0.041% Unsecured
Compulsorily Convertible Debenture (UCCD) of Rs. 10/- each fully paid, at 2 premium of Rs. 1,031.9 per share to existing share kolders.
These CCDs shall be convertible into one Equity shares - 1} By the Company or the Investors at any time afer third anniversary of the
completion date, if mutualy agreed between Company and all investors collectively or 2) on the tenth anniversary of completion date

without any application or any further act on the part of debenture holders.




Alliance Mall Developers Co Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2022

{Currency : Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

d) Shares / Debentures held by holding company and/or their subsidiaries

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
. Number of Number of equity
} Ry
Names of equity shareholders equity shares % ofhokling  sharesheld inlakhs % of holding
hield in lakhs
Prozone Inta Properties Limited, Holding
Company
o -
0.001% Unsecured Compulsory Convertible Debenture 2.95 61.50% 395 61.50%
{IJCCD}
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
. Number of Number of equity
Names of equity shareholders equity shares % of holding  shares held in lakhs % of holding
held in Iakhs
Haegwood Commercial Developers Private Limited,
Fellow Subsidiary
1% Non-Cumulative, Compuisory Convertible " 0
Preference Shares of Rs, 10 each fully paid up 6.89 100.00% 6.89 100.00%

¢) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in fhe company

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

No. in iakhs % holding No. in lakhs % holding
0.001% Unsecured Compulsory Convertible
Debenture (JCCD)
Prozone Intu Properties Limited , Holding Company 2,95 61.50% 295 61.50%
Triangle Real Estate India Holdings Limited 1.68 35.00% 1.68 35.00%
Particufars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

No. in lakhs %o holding No. in takhs % holding
1% Non-Cumulative, Compulsory Convertible
Preference Shares of Rs, 10/- each fully paid np
Hagwood Qomercial Developers Private Limited, 6.89 100.06% 6.89 100.00%
Peilow Subsidiary




Alliance Mall Developers Co Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2022

(Currency : Indian Rupees int Lakhs)
Note 17.2 : Other Equity

Reserves and surplus

31 March 22 31 March 21
Securities premium account
Opening balance 20,895.45 20,895.45
Add: Addition during the year - -
Closing balance (refer sub-note 1} 20,895.45 20,895.45
Retained earnings
Opening balance (5,696.07) (3,374.30).
Add: (loss) for the year (442.76) (2,321.77)
Closing balance (refer sub-note 2) (6,138.83) (5,696.07)
Other Comprehensive Income
Opening balance (41.78) (43.90)
Add: Gain on fair value of defined benefit plans (0.50) 2.12
Add: Gain on fair value of investments - -

(42.28) (41.78)

Closing balance (refer sub-note 2)

Equity Component on fair value of Corporate Guarantee given by Parent

Opening balance 866.54 766.54
Add: addition for the year 20.00 100,00
Closing balance 886.54 866.54
Sub-nete:

1 Securities premium is received pursuant to the further issue of shares/ debentures at a premium net of the.
share / debenture issue expenses. This is a non-distributable reserve except for the following instances

where the the share premium account may be applied;
1) towards the issue of unissued shares of the Company to the members of the Company as fully paid bonus

shares;
ii) for the purchase of its own shares or other securities;

iii) in writing off the preliminary expenses of the Company;
iv) in writing off the expenses of, or the commission paid or discount allowed on, any issue of shares or

debentures of the Company; and
v) in providing for the premium payable on the redemption of any redeemable preference shares or of any

debentures of the Company.

2 Retained earnings represents the accumulated profits of the Company.
"
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Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2022

{Currency : Indian Rupees in Lakhs)
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Note 18 : Borrowings
(Secured)

Lease renta! discounting loan from bank (refer note (i) below) 19,640.93 19,353.25
(506.65) (484,31}

Less : Debt syndication fees

Less : Current maturities ef long-ertm debt (refer note 22) (710.00) (1,662.85)
Term Loan from Financial Institution - 1,662.85
Zero Coupon Secured Unrated Untisted Non Convertible Debentare 2,069.7¢ -

20,493.98 18.868.94

Total non current borrowings

1.ease rental discounting foan from bank {secared} includes:

i) R, 19,640.93 lakhs (31 March 2021: Rs. 19,353.25 lakhs} loan fom Bank presently carrying interest @ 8.95 % (previous year 8.85 %)
{floating rate). The loan is repayable in 144 monthly instalment starting from January 2018, The loan is secured by first exclusive charge on
undivided share of land measuring 12.48 acres and Mall building thereon in Coimbatore and rent receivables from both present and future
income from Prozone Mall. The loan are further secured by corporate guarantee of the Holding Company Prozone Intu Properties Limited,
One time restructuring of loan as preseribed by RBI due to covid is implemented by bank in current financial year.

i} Rs. Nil lakhs (31 March 2021: Rs. 1,662.85 lakhs) loan from Financial Institution was carrying interest @ 13.80 % (previous year @
13.80%) (floating rate). The loan was repayable in 30 monthly instalment starting from January 2022. The said loan was fully repaid during

this financial vear

it} During the vear company has issued 2000 urrated, senior, redeemable, secured, transferable, non-convertible debentures of a face value
of INR 1,00,000/- each, of the aggregate value of up to INR 20,00,00,000 (total amount agreed amount is Rs 90 crores which will be issued
in various tranches). The Debentures are Zero Coupon and are redeemable at premium of an IRR of 12% in 16 quarters. These are secured
against land admeasuring 10,48 Acres including building thereon, FSL, development rights, all sold & unsold units on the said land. These
are further secured hy corporate guarantee of the Holding Company Prozone lntu Properties Limited. Accrued interest but not due is

included ir closing balance,
iv} As per RBI's Policy, the Company has availed the relief provided by banks & financial institution by way of moratorium on principal and
interest repayments on the loans taken from banks and financial institutions and thus the repayment schedule has been modified accordingly.

Note 19 : Other financigl Jiabilities

Lease deposit from tenants 1,682.45 1,774.48
Total other financiat liabilities 1,682.45 177448

Note 20 : Provisions

Provision for employee benefits (refer note 35)

« Provision for gratuity 13.60 16.00
Total provisions 13.60 16.00
Note 21 : Other non-current liabilities

Deferred labilities on financial liabilities camried at amortised cost 26.84 57.62
Total ether non-cirrent labilities 26.84 57.62
Note 22 : Borrowings
(Unsecured)

Current maturities of long-term debt (refer note 18) 716,00 1,662.85
Loar taken from Prozone Intu Properties Limited, holding company (Refer Note (i)) 1,488.4 -
Loan taken from Empire Mal} Private Limited, fellow subsidiary company (Refer Note (if)) 2,194.61 2,233,15
4,393.55 3,896.00
S

Total current borrowings

Details of unsecared borrowings
i) Rs, 1488.94 (31 March 2020: Rs. Nil) loan taken from holding company was repayable on demand and carries interest rate @ 8.5% p.a.

i) Rs. 2194.61 lakhs (31 March 2021; Rs. 2233.15 lakhs) loan taken from fellow subsidiary company is repayable on demand and carries

interest rate @ 10.6% p.a. (Inte
Limited)
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Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

as at 31 March 2022
{Currency ; Indian Rupees in Lakhs)
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Nate 23 : ‘Frade payables
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer note below} 1.92 1.47
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises. 347.08 428.68
348,92 430, 1;.,5,,,

‘Fotal trade payables

Dues to Miero and Small Enterprises have been determined 10 (he extent such parties have been identified on the basis of
information collected by the Management. This has been relied upon by the auditers.

Disclosure of trade payable ageing schedule i
Ouistanding for followings periods from due date of payments
FY 2021-2022 Less than 1 12 years | 2-3 years More than 3 Total
year years
Unbilled - - - - 65,56
Pilled '
i) MSME 177 1 D15 (.00 0.00 162
(i} Cthers 22211 39.28 16.23 3.22 281.44
(iii} Disputed dues - MSME 0.00 (.00 0.00 0.00 (.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

(iv} Disputed dues - Others

Quistanding for followings periods from due date of payments
More than 3

FY 20202021 Less than 1 1-2 years| 23 years Total
year years
Unhilled 238,31
Billed
(iy MSME . 1.47 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.46
(it} Others 146,58 25.87 5.10 12.82 190.38
(i) Disputed dues - MSME 0.00
(iv) Disputed dues - Others 0.00
Note 24 ; Other financial linbilities
Payables for capital goods 773,79 1,2713.91
Provision for employee benefit payable 27.04 23.16
Refention money payable 2375 35.44
Total other financial Habilities 824.58 11332.51
Note 25 ; Other current liabilities
Other advences:
Advances received from customers 2,429.58 1,656.45
Statutory dues payable
- Tax deducted at source payable 18.60 12,32
- Professional tax payable 0.04 0.07
- Provident fund payable 0,60 0.79
- Labour welfare fund payable 0.62 0.02
- GST payabie 158.24 11132
Deferred liabilities on financial Habilities carried at amortised cost 13.55 5.86
Capital expenditure deposit with tenants 105.39 119.81
Total other current liabilities 2,726.02 1,906.55
Note 26 ; Provisions
Provision for employee benefits (refer nate 35) .
- provision for gratuity 3.66 3.67
- provision for compensated absences 5,89 11.35
13.55 1502

‘Fotaf current provisions
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Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2022

(Currency : Indian Rupees in Lakhs}

Note 27 : Revenue from operations

Sule of services
License fees and rental income
Service charges
Amortisation of security deposits
Cther operating revemie
Others (Space on Hire, Kiosk income, Rental for data invoice, IBS, efe.)

Total revenue from operations
Note 28 : Other income

Interest income

- on fixed deposit

Income on account of wind power credit
Interest on Income tax refund

Sundry Balances Written back

Fair valuation of processing fees
Liabilities no longer required written back

‘Fotzl other Income
Note 29 : Employee benefit expense

Salaries, wages and bonus
Contributior to provident fund
Expenses related to post-employment defined benefit ptans (refer note 35)

Expenses related to compensated absences (refer note 35)
‘Fotai employee benefit expense

Note 30 : Finanee Cost
Interest on:
- unwinding of security deposits
- loan from banks
« foan from refated parties
Notional corporate guarantee expenses
Processing fees
Interest on MSME

‘Total finance cost
Note 3% : Depreciation expense

Depreciation on property, plant and equipments
Depreciation on investment prepenty

Total depreciation and amortisation expense

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

2,230.76 121110
1,278.37 878.84
14.63 30.08
27014 14z
3,795.90 225424
2175 2043
11637 85.07
48.92 13.46
29792 197
7112 -

- 26.15
562.08 147.08
T
150.73 119.12

3.53 5.61
475 4.08
0.07 273
159.08 131.54
6.18 7591
1,728.98 1,72832
223.13 221.33
64.38 54.00
87.32 86.36

. 0.1
210999 517193
76.77 106.30
1,511.96 1,682.59
158873 178880
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Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as af 37 March 2022

(Currency : Indian Rupees in Lakhs)
Note 32 : Other expenses

Rent paid en machinery (refer note 42)
Rates and taxes

Repairs and maintenance

Insurance expenses

Housekeeping and technical manpower cost
Technical manpower cost

Security manpower cost

Eleciricity expenses (net of recovery)
Printing and stationary

Office expenses

Legal and professional fees

Bvent and exhibitions

Management consultancy fees
Advertising and business promotion
Brokerage expense

Travelling expenses

Provision for expected credit loss
Sundry balances written off

Directors sitting fees

Payment to auditors’ (refer note 32(a} below)
Miscellaneous expenses

Total other expenses
Note 32{a) : Payment to auditors
Statutory audit fees

Others

Nete 33 : Ensning per equity share

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

25,80 25.80
124.63 81.54
69,88 4822
34,87 37.55
4204 27.37
14.09 1335
36.88 3170
11645 45.42
041 0.17
0.84 0.16
11534 65.62
16.63 8.21
41430 264,68
30.28 59.25
. 8.50
572 5.08
81.47 3524
0.59 -
375 3.75
20.60 14.42
1333 6.28
1,168.38 782.28
20,00 14.00
0.60 042
20,60 14.42

A reconcitiation of profit for the year and equity shares used in the computation of basic and diluted eamnings per equity share is set out

Particalars
Profit computation for basic earnings per share of Rs. 10 each

Weighted average number of equity shares (No. in lakhs) for EPS- Basic computation 32.68 32.68
Weightad average number of potential equity shares (No. in lakhs) eutstanding during the year 1569 11.6%
Total number of equity share for calculating diluted eaming per share 44,37 44.37
Net profit afier tax as per statement of profit and loss attributable fo equity sharehoiders (442.76) (23287
Basic earning per share (in Rs.) (13.55) (71.05)
Diluted earning per share (in Rs.) {13.55) (71.05)

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

The potential equity shares in the form of 6.89 lakhs (31 March 2021 : 6.89 lakhs), 1% Non-Cumutative, Compuisory Conventible Preference
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Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2022

{Currency ; Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

Note 34 : Confingent liabifities and commitments are given below:

A)

B}

Commitments
i) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be exeouted on capital account not provided for (net of advances) Rs. 3547.98

lakhs (31 March 2021: Rs. 2830.01 lakhs).

Contingent linbilities
) Guarantee given by Bank on behalf of the Company Rs.10 Lakhs (31 March 2021: Rs. 10 Lakhs).

ii) Claims against the Company, not acknowledged as debts Rs Nil {31 March 2021: Rs. Nif)

jii) Disputed demands in respect of Income-tax: Rs Nil (31 March 2021: Rs. Nil)

iv) “The Hon'ble Supreme Court of India ("SC"} by their order dated February 28, 2019, in the case of Surya Roshani Limited &
others v/s EPFO, set out the principles based on which atlowances paid to the employees should be identified for inclusion in
basic wages for the purposes of computation of Provident Fund contribution. Subsequently, a review petition against this decision
has been filed and is pending before the SC for disposal. In view of the management, the [iability for the period from date of the
SC order to 31 March 2022 has been provided in the books of account. The same has also be paid subsequently. Further, pending
decision on the subject review petition and directions from the EPFO, the impact for the past period, if any, is not ascertainable

and consequently no effect has been given in the accounts.™
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Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as at 3] March 2022

(Currency : Indion Rupees in Lakhs)
Note 35 ; Disclosure relating to employee benefits as per Ind AS 19 "Employee Benefits'

A Defined benefit obligations and shori-ferm compensated absences

§)  Defined benefit plan
The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act,1972 under which an employee who has completed five years of service is entitled to specific

benefits. The level of benefits provided depends on the member’s length of service and salary at retirement age.

The present value of cbligation is determined based on actaariad valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each peried of service as
giving Tise to additional unit of employee benefit entitiement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation.

ii) Short-term compensated absences
27 days of privilege leave for staffis allowed each year. Unutilised leave can be carried forward to the extend of 42 days of leave, If the same not availed in

calendar year then the same will be lapsed.
The significant actuacial assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows:
! Funded Plan
[Particulnrs Gratuity
31 March 22 31 March 21
1} |Expenses recopnised in the statement of profit and foss
Current Service Cost 3.67 3.01
Past Service Cost y .
Inserest Cost 1.08 1.07
Components of defined benchit costs recognized in profit or loss 4,75 4.08
b} ncluded in other comprebensive income
Actaarial changes arising from changes in financial assamptions B 0.44
Actuarial changes arising from changes in demographic assumpiions - -
 Experience adjustments 0.78 (327
Retara on plan assets exchuding amounts incladed in Interest Income ! (0.13) .00
Actuarial Loss / (Gain) recognized in OCI 0.67 | {2.83)
¢} |Recogoised in balance sheet
Present value of obligation as at the end of the year 2081 2223
Fair value of plan assets as &t the end of the year (2.74) (2.57)
Net Liability {Asset) 17,27 19.66 17.3%
d} |Changes in defined benefit obligations
Present vaiue of obligation as at the beginning of the year
Defined Benefit Obligation (“FBO™) at the beginning of the year 2.2 20.80
Service cost 3.67 3.0t
Interest cost L15 £.25
Benefits paid (7.82) -
Actuarial loss f (gain} 0.78 (2.83)
Present value of obligation 4s at the end of the year 20,02 21224
€} [Change in fair value of assets
Fair value of plan assets at the begianing of the year 2561 2.38
Interest Incorme 0.07{ 0.18
Reture on plap assets excluding amounts included in interest income a1 0.00
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 2.74 2,56 {
f) {Reconciliztion of net defined benefit liability
Net opening provision in books of accounts 19.66 1841
Transfer in/{out) obiigation - -
Employee Benefit Expense 475 4,08
Amounts recoguized in Other Comprehensive Income 0.67 (2.83)
Benefiss paid (7.82) -
Closing provision in books of accounts 17.27 _ 19.66
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Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2022

{Currency : Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

Note 35 : Disclosure relating to employee benefits as per Ind AS 19 'Employee Benefits’

Unfunded Plan
Compensated absences
[Particulars 31 March 22 31 March 23
a) [Changes in defined benefif obligations
Present value of obligation as af the beginning of the year
| Defined Benefit Obligation (“PBO”) at the beginning of the year 11.34 10.59
Service cost 2.97 2.88
Interest cost 0.61 0.62
Actuasial (gain) (3.51) 0.76)
Liabilities transferred in / {out) B .
Benefits paid (152) t.o7)
Present value of obligation as at the end of the year 9.89 1134
b} [Expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss
Current Service Cost 297 2.88
Past Service Cost (3.5D) (0.76)
Interest Cost 0.61 0.62
Total included in ‘Employee Benefit Expense’ 0.07 2.74
- R
¢} |Liability recogrised in balance sheet
Present value of obligation as at the end of the year 9.89 11,34
Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the year .
Net Liability (Asset) 9.59 11.34
d) [Components of actuariai gain/losses on obligation
Actuarial changes arising from changes in financial assumptons (0.15) 019§
Actuarial changes arising from changes in demographic assumpfions - -
Experience adjustments {3.36) (0.96)
Net actuariat Loss/(Gain) (3.51} (0.77;
{ratuity Compensated absences
31 March 22 31 March 21 31 March 22 31 March 21
€) |Carrent/ pos-current classification )
Current 13.60 3.67 9.89 11.34
MNon- cusrent 3,66 16.00 - -
17.26 19.67 9.89 11.34
The following table summarizes the principal assumptions used for defined benefit obligation :_sn_d campensated absences:
j Gratuity Comp ted absences
Actuarial assumptions 31 March 22 31 March 21 31 March 22 31 March 21
Discount rate 6.05% 6.05% 6.05% 6,05%
Withdrawal Rates 10% atall ages | 10% at all ages 10%atall ages { 10%atall ages
Leave availment rate - - 5.00% 5.00%
Salary escalation rate (% p.a) * 5.10% _ 5,10% 5.10% 5.10%
Indian assured Endian assured Indian assured | Indien assured
lives mortality lives mortality fives mortality lives mortality
_ (2012-14) (2012-14) (2012-14) (2012-14)
[Mortalily rate nltimate __ultimate __ultimate ultimate

* ‘the estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, senfority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as

supply and demand in the empioyment market.
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Motes to the financial statements (Continued)
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(Currency : Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

Note 35 : Disclosure relating to employee benefits as per Ind AS 19 'Employee Benefits'

Quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption is ag below:
Particulars - o Gratuity Compensated absences
o o 31 March22 | 31 March 21 31 Mearch22 | 31 March 21

0.5% increase 0.5% increase

1. Discountrate 19.51 21.69 9.68 11.11

ii. Salary escalation rate - over a long-term 20.51 22.7% 10.1¢ 11.60
10% Increase 10% increase

fif. Withdrawal rate (W.R.) EXZI 22,20 0.80 1 11.22
0,5% decrease ) 0.5% decrease

1. Disconnt rate - 20.54 22.81 10.10 11.60

il. Salary escalation rate - over a long-term 19.53 21,68 9.68 11.10
10% decrease 10% decrease

ijf, Withdrawal rate (W.R.) 20.02 | 2227 959 | 1150

Sensitivity for significant actuarial assumptions is computed by vatying one actuarial assumption used for the valuation of the defined benefit cbligation,
keeping all other actuariat assumptions constant,

Maturity analysis of defined benefit obligation Gratuity i Compensated absences
Particuiars Cash flow Distribution (%) Cash flow Distribution (%)
1st Foilowing Year .07 20.9% C 238 17.9%
2nd Following Year 12214 5.1% 123 9.6%
31d Following Yesr 1.28 5.0% L1 B8.46%
44k Following Year £.35 5.2% 6.99 7.8%
5th Following Year 1.36 5.1% 0.89 7.0%
Sum of Year § {0 10 Year 7.64 36.3% 3.49 27.6%
Total expected payments 19,93 16,25
Experience adjustments
Particulars 2022 02t 020 2019 2018
Present value of defined benefit obligation 20.01 22,23 20.80 18.88 13.19
Fair value of plan assets (2.74) 2.57) (239 (2.22) (3.47)
{Deficit) 17.27 19.67 1841 16.66 972
B} Defined contribution plans
The Company makes coatribution towards provident find to 2 defined contribution retirement plan for gualifying employees. The provident fund plan is
operated by the regional provident find commissioner, Under the schemes, the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll cost to the
retirement contribution schemes o fund benefits.

31 March 22 31 March 21
3.53 5.61
3.53 5.61

The Company has recognised the following amounts in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year:
Conribution to provident fund (refer note 29)

“The Her'ble Supreme Court of India {"SC*) by their order dated February 28, 2019, in the case of Suryz Roshani Limited & others ws EPFO, set out the principles based on
which allowances paid to the employees should be ideatified for inclusion in basic wages for the purposes of computation of Provident Fund contribution. Company has also
made provisien of prevident fand liability till 31 March 2022 and even paid the same.
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Alliance Mall Developers Co Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2022

{Currency : Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

Note 37 : Segment Reporting as required under Indian Accounting Standard 108, “Operating Sepments” :

Based on the “management approach” as defined in Ind AS 108 — Operating Segments, the managing director / director
evaluates the Group’s performance based on an analysis of various performance indicators by business segment.
Accordingty information has been presented along these segments. The accounting principles used int fhe preparation of
the financial statement are consistently applied in individual segment to prepare segment reporting. The Group is
organised into business units based on its services and has two reportable segments, as follows:

1. Leasing.
2. Qutright Sales

a) Information about Primary Segments - Business Segments
31 March 2022
Particalars Leasing Outright Sales { Total
For the vear ended 31 March, 2022
Revénue
Segment revenue 3,795.90 - 3,795.90
Unallocated revenue -
3,795.90
Resulis
Segment results 1,158.35 (254.29) 904.66
Unaliocated expenses 24.35
Operation (loss) 879.71
Finance costs 2,109.99
Other income (562.08)
(Loss) before fax . (668.20)
Tax expense (225.44)
{Loss) for the year . (442.75)
As st 31 March, 2022 .
Sepment assets 34,845.17 9,380.57 44,225.74
Unallocated assets 2,342.35
Total assets (A) 46,568.09
Segment liabilities 23,601.36 6,157.28 29,758.64
Unallocated liabitities 764.85
Total liabilities (B) 30,523.49
Capital employed (A) - (B) 16,044.60




Alliance Mall Developers Co Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

as at 31 March 2022
31 March 2021
Particulars Leasing Qutright Sales Total
Yor the year ended 31 March, 2021
Revenue
Segment revenue 2,254.24 - 2,254.24
Unaltocated revenue i
2,254.24
Results
Segment results (169.19) (261.03) (430.22)
Unallocated expenses 18.25
Operation (loss) {448.47T)
Finance costs 2,171.93
Other income (147.08)
(Loss) before tax . (2,473.31)
Tax expense {151.55)
(L.oss) for the year (2,321.76)
As af 31 March, 2621
Segment assets 36,073.03 5,424.47 ] - 41,497.50
Unallocated assets 3,267.63
Total assets (A} 44,765.13
Segment Habilities 25,902.60 2,256.02 28,158.62
Unallocated liabilities 138.65
Total Habilities (B) 28,297.27
Capital employed (A) - (B) 16,467.86

b) Information about major customers
No single customer represents 10% or more of the Company’s fotal revenue for the years ended 31 March 2022 and

31 March 2021, respectively.
Naote 38 : Disclosure with regards to section 186 (4) of the Companies Act, 2013

(i For investments refer note 3 and 11
The said investment is kept for availing benefit of electricity generation through wind power and Rs 10 lakhs kept as

investment in Mutual fund with lender of LRD facility

(i) For Loans given :
The Compary has not provided interest in current year and previous year as said loans and advances are written off
during previous vear the year.

Note 39 : Note on regrouping and Reclassifications

Previous period figures have been re-grouped / re-classified wherever necessary, 1o conform to current period’s
classification in order to comply with the requirements of the amended Schedule 111 to the Companies Act, 2013 as per

latest amendments dated 24 March 2021,
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